AGENDA

ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT
Regular Meeting
November 28, 2016, 1:00 PM
Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda
Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
2. CONSENT CALENDAR (Action)
a. Approval of Minutes — October 17, 2016 Special Meeting
3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
4. NEW BUSINESS

a. Approve Resolution Authorizing the Board President or Designee to Enter
into the Ground Lease and the Limited Partnership Agreement, and to
Execute the Loan Documents and Project Agreements, Guaranties,
Security Assignments, Deeds of Trust, and Ancillary Documents Required
for the Development of Del Monte Apartments on Behalf of the Limited
Partnership (Action)

b. Rosefield Project Update: Authorize the Board President to Negotiate
Terms and Execute a Final Contract Agreement for Architectural and

Engineering Design Services for the Rosefield Project in an Amount Not to
Exceed $1,200,000 (Action)

c. Approve and Adopt Budget for Fiscal Year 2017 (Action)
PUBLIC COMMENT (non-agenda items)
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS — BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF
8. ADJOURNMENT

N o o

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 1 of 31



Agenda November 28, 2016
Island City Development Page 2 of 2

NOTES:

Sign language interpreters will be available on request. Please contact Housing
Authority

Please contact the Executive Assistant at 747-4325 or 522-8467 (TDD number)
at least 72 hours before the meeting to request an interpreter. Accessible seating for
persons with disabilities (including those using wheelchairs) is available. Audio tapes of
the meeting are available upon request. MINUTES OF THE MEETING ARE
AVAILABLE IN ENLARGED PRINT. Please contact Housing Authority Executive
Assistant at 747-4325 or 522-8467 (TDD number) at least 72 hours before the meeting
to request agenda materials in an alternative format, or any other reasonable

accommodations that may be necessary to participate in and enjoy the benefits of the
meeting.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE. Government's
duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions,
boards, councils and other agencies of the City of Alameda exist to conduct the citizen
of Alameda’s business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before
the people and that City operations are open to the people’s review.

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE
ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE
OPEN GOVERNMENT COMMISSION: the address is 2263 Santa Clara Avenue, Room
380, Alameda, CA, 94501; phone number is 510-747-4800; fax number is 510-865-

4048, e-mail address is Iweisige@alamedaca.gov; and contact is Lara Weisiger, City
Clerk.

In order to assist the Housing Authority's efforts to accommodate persons with
severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be
sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these
individuals.

IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

e Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced
by Board members may speak for a maximum of three (3) minutes per agenda
item when the subject is before the Board. Please file a speaker’s slip with the
Board President. Upon recognition by the President, approach the rostrum and
state your name.

e Lengthy testimony should be submitted in writing and only a summary of
pertinent points presented verbally.

» Applause and demonstrations are prohibited during Board meetings.

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 2 of 31



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 2-A

MINUTES
Draft until approved
ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT
Special Meeting
October 17, 2016, 11:00 AM
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue, Downstairs Conference Room

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

President Cooper called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m., with the following
Board Members present: Vice President McCahan and Secretary/Treasurer Basta.
Members absent: none. Staff in Attendance: Victoria Johnson and Rosemary Valeska.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR (Action)
a. Approval of Minutes — June 13, 2016 Regular Meeting

The minutes were approved by unanimous consent (with typo corrections as
noted).

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
4. NEW BUSINESS

a. Adopt Resolution Authorizing Savings Accounts at the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) (Action)

Motion and second (McCahan and Basta) to adopt resolution. Motion passed by
unanimous roll call vote.

b. Adopt Resolution Amending the ICD Articles of Incorporation to Include a
Dissolution Clause required by the State Board of Equalization (Action)

Motion and second (McCahan and Basta) to adopt resolution. Motion passed by
unanimous roll call vote.

c. 2437 Eagle Avenue Project Update; Authorize the Formation of a Limited
Partnership and Approve Island City Development to form a new LLC to
Act as the General Partner; Authorize Staff to Open and Administer New
Bank Accounts for the Partnership; Authorize the Board President or
Designee to Negotiate and Execute All Documents Related to Selection of
the Tax Credit Investor and Construction and Permanent Lender and Any
Other Documents Required for Project Development; and Authorize the
Board President or Designee to Negotiate and Execute a Contract
Agreement for Project Construction with a Pre-qualified Contracting Firm
(Action)

Motion and second (Basta and McCahan) to approve. Motion passed by
unanimous voice vote.

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 3 of 31




Draft Minutes October 17, 2016
Island City Development Page 2 of 2

d. Del Monte Project Update; Accept an additional $300,000 Pre-
Development Loan from the Housing Authority (Action)

Motion and second (McCahan and Basta) to approve. Motion passed by
unanimous voice vote.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (non-agenda items) - None
6. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS - None
7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS — BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF

a. Ms. Johnson announced that President Cooper had issued an official letter to
Vice President McCahan and Secretary Basta extending their terms for an additional two
years.

b. Ms. Johnson announced that the next meeting would be scheduled on either
November 28 or 29.

8. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was unanimously adjourned at 11:15 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED

Janet Basta
Secretary

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 4 of 31



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 4-A

To: Board of Directors
Island City Development

From: Victoria Johnson
Director of Housing and Community Development

Date: November 28, 2016

Re: Approve Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director or Designee
to Enter into the Ground Lease and the Limited Partnership
Agreement, and to Execute the Loan Documents and Project
Agreements, Guaranties, Security Assignments, Deeds of Trust and
Ancillary Documents Required for the Development of Del Monte
Apartments on Behalf of the Limited Partnership

BACKGROUND

Del Monte Apartments (Project) is a 31-unit senior rental project located at 1301 Buena
Vista Avenue and adjacent to the Del Monte warehouse redevelopment project. There
are 30 one-bedroom units and one two-bedroom manager's unit. The Project will be
developed by the Housing Authority and its non-profit affiliate, Island City Development.
The funding sources for the Project include low-income housing tax credit equity, a
permanent mortgage loan, City HOME funds, gap funding from Tim Lewis Communities,
and 25 project-based Section 8 vouchers. The gap funding from Tim Lewis
Communities will be contributed in the form of a loan from the Housing Authority.

The tax credit investor and limited partner will be the National Equity Fund; the
construction lender will be BBVA and CCRC will be the permanent lender for the 15
year mortgage term. Del Monte Senior LLC has been formed to serve as the general
partner of the tax credit partnership, Sherman and Buena Vista, LP. This LP will serve
as the owner of the improvements for the duration of the 15-year tax credit period.

Staff is actively working with outside counsel to finalize all closing documents and the
construction loan closing date is scheduled for the week of December 5, 2016.
Construction of the affordable project will take approximately 14 months.

DISCUSSION

Ownership Structure: At the time of the construction loan closing, Sherman and Buena
Vista L.P. will enter into a 99-year ground lease with the Housing Authority. This limited
partnership will be the ownership entity of the Project (improvements) and Del Monte
Senior LLC will be the general partner of the partnership. NEF Assignment Corporation

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 5 of 31



ICD Board of Directors November 28, 2016
Page 2 of 4

will be the limited partner (investor). NEF is a short term partner and will be replaced by
an upper tier investor after closing.

The Housing Authority will acquire the land at closing and will continue to own the land.
Beginning in the 13th year after the project is completed and occupied, the Housing
Authority (or Island City Development) will have a right of first refusal and an option to
purchase the LP interest; the acquisition price will be the greater of the appraised value
or the outstanding debt and taxes (if any).

The Housing Authority has received approval from HUD to award 25 project-based
vouchers to the Project and to enter into a 15-year Agreement for Housing Assistance
Payments (AHAP) with the Partnership. The voucher units will serve households at
30%, 45%, and 50% of area median income. Tenants for these units will be referred
from a waiting list maintained by the Housing Authority. Five units will be available to
eligible seniors that have applied to a site-specific wait list and one unit is reserved for a
property manager.

Financial Structure (Permanent):

The detailed development budget that has been approved by the lenders, investor, and
the City is included as Exhibit A. The Housing Authority loan will be secured by a lien on
the property, and is in second place after the private CCRC loan. The City HOME loan
will be in third position. The Housing Authority and City loans are repayable from net
cash flow (residual receipts) as calculated by the financial audit. There will be three
separate affordability restrictions placed on the property (City, Housing Authority, and
State) ensuring long term affordability for no less than 59 years.

Closing Documents
The closing Resolution (Exhibit B) and all legal documents associated with the

transaction have been prepared by outside counsel. The Housing Authority is
represented by Carle, Mackie Powers & Ross for the transaction.

The key closing documents that must be executed by the Housing Authority are listed
below and draft copies of the documents are provided in a binder available for Board
and public review.

Ground Lease

Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement

Right of First Refusal and Purchase Option Agreement
Loan Agreement and Promissory Note

Development Fee Agreement

Subordination Agreements (subordination to senior lender)
Construction Deed of Trust

ol U S o e

Completion and Payment Guaranties

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 6 of 31



ICD Board of Directors November 28, 2016
Page 3 of 4
9. Assignment of Accounts and Contracts
10. Affordable Housing Agreement
11.Consent to Assignment of AHAP Contract as Security for Financing
12.Contract For The Use of HOME Funds, Promissory Note

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Legal and other eligible costs incurred during the pre-development period will be
reimbursed when the construction loan closes. To date, pre-development expenses
total to approximately $900,000. These funds will be redeposited into the Island City
Development account.

As project developer and in exchange for the services provided, Island City
Development will earn a development fee in the amount of $800,000.

Tim Lewis Communities will contribute gap financing in the amount of $3.6 million prior
to close. The Housing Authority will loan these funds to the Project at a 3%-4% rate of
interest (to be negotiated) and will be repaid from available cash flow in proportion to
the other soft loan (the HOME loan) made to the Project. The loan is due in full in 57
years.

Both the Housing Authority and Island City Development will be required to provide
financial and performance guarantees. The financial guarantees will be reflected in the
Housing Authority’s financial statements as “contingent liabilities.” The construction
guarantee will be released at construction completion and conversion to permanent
financing. The permanent loan is a 15-year non-recourse loan secured by a first
mortgage on the property. The tax credit guarantees will extend for the duration of the
15-year tax credit period.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve Resolution authorizing the Board President or designee to enter into the
Ground Lease, the Limited Partnership Agreement, and to execute the loan documents
and project agreements, guaranties, security assignments, deeds of trust and ancillary
documents required for the development of Del Monte Apartments on behalf of the
limited partnership.

Respectfully submitted,

7/ g(;,?/l'-"z‘{;c:; j? /L-Lc)-a ')';

Victoria Johnson
Director of Housing and Community Development

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 7 of 31



ICD Board of Directors November 28, 2016
Page 4 of 4

Exhibit A — Financial Projections
Exhibit B — Closing Resolution

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 8 of 31



T 5
™M
G ©
®
oo
T o
© O
C ©
% P 9/E'€9L Pl 9.E'EIL'PL |+ |
(0] SIS8q % 6/90408p WO JipaJo Ad 0 Jjey JaeRqns Br9'0E- Br9'0e- | €9 |
LS1'046'01 529'0vE [FGRGH P20PELFL PZO'PEL 'FL 908'¢01'92 S1S0D 103rodd TvLlol| g |
() 092'55€'04 092'sse'0L ueoT uopanasuog o juswikeday | 16 |
24921 000°008 000°008 000'008 dde 5w | ul peddes - B4 swdoisasg [ 09
O 1680 LB'FHT suonesedo ow g - senssay Bunessdo|Bg |
- 00002 000'02 upny 19801 [ B |
o0 000'0F 000'0% Bunexei [ 46 |
N 000'0t 000'0r uonealpuAs - By NSUBD[ 65 |
1 oo0'sk 000'5H Apmis 1esep] 56 |
A 000°0L ooo'ok Buisolo Ugo| JUSUBWIS - BL{ 5 |
-~ 0000k ooo'oL Buiso|? UBo| UBUBWLE - [BBaT) =
1 000°0F ooo'oy uonealpuis - eban) (28]
© 000'0E 000'0E 000°0E Buisa|5 uea uojianisuny - 588 4 BGa( LS |
- 000's 000's uoneziuebio - sea jefe| 0g |
0 (4] SGLLP g5l 88 BBJILIWCD UCNEO|y IIPe.D XEL| BY |
o000k 000'0k 0000k tesiesddy| gy |
2 ooo'oz 000'0Z 000'02 Buisoio ueo uenanasuod - ey L |
000°0S5 L 000'051 000'06+ [our.nsy| Uojansua] ja esnod)| o
000'09 000'09 00009 1500 pue [BB8| /apus| UoNANASUOD| G |
ZSH'EZEL zer'zel SUIUDL / - UDII3NNSUG3 1S0d 1SBISIUI UBO| UoNanAsuo|
EBS'Y Lv6'58C Lv6'682 LY6'68Z SYJUOW 9. - UON3NIISUD BULNR JSBIBIU| UECT UaRaNiSUOD| B |
000'08 000°0E 000'08 ugnonJjsuoa Buunp sexe | E
Lze'ts [FA-l] L28'v8 uonan/isuoo Bupnp sueo| yos uo sesa|[ 11
sL0'ez 0 0 aL0'ee %1 DN 88 ueo| Wiad[ OF |
0 0ge’L ¥99'L4 ¥99'LL v99°LL %54 @ s884 ueoT uopanijsuoD( 6€ |
000'05L 000'05 4 000'05 4 Aauebufuoo 1502 Yos| g€ |
oon'os 000'04 000'04 slodal [euawuoisuz| /€ |
egl'e 000°00Z 000'002 000'002 Juswabeuew uononnsues| ag
zsL'y 000°00€ 000°'00E 000'008 Buysey *AuusauiBus ‘fenins|GE |
LET'B 000025 000'02s 000'025 Bimas|yay| vE |
0 000'sZH 000'sZH 000's2} sdmjoay Aljin pus spue gl EE |
B88Z'09€ 88Z'09E B5Z'0SE (s88) paniem Jo jau) s8s joedw|| ZE
see’g BBL'LSS B6L°L5S [sB2'255 %00C eiey Jsnfpe - AsueBuiuod uopanisuog| Lg
000'05 000°05 000'05 18umQ Aq pasey2nd sanpuing| OE |
008’29 008'29 00829 JoB)UED UohonRsUeY Ul Auedoid |Buosiad| 6 |
o ses’09l SE8'D9L SEB'09L Se8'09L welshs Ad| B2 |
ZSELEL Zse'lel COE'LEL B8OUBINSUL PUE pUCY JOJBNUOD 4 |
00Z'60%'L 00Z'80%" | 002’60’ L {181 by jesoushb ] 92 |
Z09'rrS's 209'rrs'e 209'vrS8 91/8/L | BjEwfise D9 - uohannsuo MeN| G2 |
Sli'ess SHLEES GHL'EES siseq Ul swawasodw) ayg| b |
000052 DD /M WLIUDa 0] pEsuU - SISBY Ul Jou 3iom 8)is 1o 8)isyo| €2
000'sZ 51502 Bujsop pue |gBe| Zg |
0 4] 000'0LE'ES BNIEA - Ajoyiny BuISNoH BpswWE|y Woly Bses| - uohisinboe puei| [z |
378¥I03Hd30 Q3aZILHOWY L1030 %6 31BVIS3H430 1S0DIvL0L SONNZ 40 S350 w
NON /O3SNIdX3 110340 Ad YO SIS¥a HO4 5I5¥8 12
SYTGRLSL 501 sy [er]
Y| %LLOY [zt
dB||OpAUEd Ad 0ZL'} 908'v01'9Z §33"NCSs Tvlol| 91 |
dejjop/sjue 34 0ZH J3N #80°L92'6 %66'66 © Jauned pajwi | St |
ool Jauped [Bleuag | #1
%000 sieak g} uey sso| U] ajqeded g an} ssdojersp peisjad| Tl |
%08 %8°L + HOBIT 'suiuoLl gz 'ssedlod WABE 092'85E°04 ueo uojannsuon|ZL |
UONANASUOD BULIND 1SBIGIU| PBMISOE pLE'E d
%BL L s|digos) [enpise) 'sieak gg ‘s|duwis %E Ob/'SEL uee| IWOH A0l ﬂ.
ugnanijsuoa BuLNp |S8JeU| PEMJZ2E /b’ 08 6 |
9%64"L sidieoas [enpises ‘Wie) Jeek gg 'eidw|s %E 000'009'E uolnguuas Z| sdadojeasp Wwoy spuny jo ueo| Aoyiny Buisnoy epswery| g |
%00°¢ %E + L M-0L 'wisyuowe Jesk G| 'OHOD 008°L09'2 g UO|]78g puUB SjUa) JUBUS) Aq papioddns - sBeBuow 1sud[ 2 |
9
SWYIL LNNOWY SONNE 40 §308N0S[ & |
t
SONNJ 40 S3SN ONY S30HNos| E |
58 L] I og I EE] T 08 I NE [ we ] g

Wd 6L€ SLOZ/E/L

V HqIux3 Y- W11 a2l

ssedwad YABE PUB SN Yim Jowes sjuapy [BQ - Ajuoyiny Buisnoy epswe|y



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

~
™
Y
o [EIWTH BLEYBZ  EOSIBE  SLLBIZ  996'GLC  tCCELZ  BMGOLZ  OPALOZ GBI GOZ  £9520Z €98 BSC  GBEZGE  IpB PG  BlEcse  OCBBRE  9FELDE 2aue|eq MaN| 0L |
o E¥8'T GlB'Z 18T 092 2Lz S0L'2 8192 259°2 929'2 009'2 vLST s’z €287 86T elr'T 6Fb'T %0t B3UB|Eq LG j58ialu| 69 |
0 ] 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sjuswsoudwl o) umopmei[ 8 |
~ 0 o 0 0 o 0 1] ] 1] o 0 a 0 Q [+] o suonesedo Wo _,moamn_k
) 8LE8T E0S'LBZ  OLLBLE  9S6'SLZ  PEZELE  GMS'0LZ  OFS'UOZ  6BI'SSZ  £95'Z9C  E96'65C  GBE'LST  LbB'PST  BLE'TST  OZE'GE  OYEUPE  L6'bEET sauseq snieses Bujiplado m
O ez £89'091  98Y'BKI  JSBZEL  GEL'9LL  BAOEE LYD'SZL  ZOP'BOL  ZPO'ZH PBLSL £B9'6S v29's9 az9'sr 0B£'€E 60L'8L [3: 1554 0 SOUBBGMIN] 58]
[ s pra 62E'L zaL’t 166 ve8 580°F 026 85. 188 288 %6t Bee 18l 9 %0t 82um|Eq U j58.a1u|[ET |
o 195'55 Z89'LE Gi8'lz swswaAcidw Jaj umopmelq| 2 |
005G} 005°GH 005°GL 00551 005'SL 005'G1 005’61 005'54 005'GL 005'sk 005'54 005'SH 005'GH 00561 005'SH €85 wsodeq| 19 |
£83'091 989'6FL  £GBZEL  G6L'OLL  BGOG6 LvO'SZL Zov'gol  Zv0'T6 vBLSL £89'65 vZ9'se 829’6t 0BL'EE 60L'8L £85'Z 0 83ue|eq eAlesal juswaddey| 00 |
69
E
Gl i [5]
BLZLLE 68Y'YOE  OGL'ZSE  LOE'OPE  OZB'9ZE  PELZLE  9LO'L0E  199'9BZ  959°'9BZ  BBG'9.C  058'/9Z  9Z9'8SZ  LOBEPE  E8PLET  PYE'EEZ  LbLDLL EEEEAA SIENIANI ONILYHIAO WLOL[ 85 |
o008 008 008 oo8 0ng 008 008 oo oon ool oo oos oog oo 008 Qo8 oo %000 8] diysieulied a1e1s] 56 |
L06'6T 068'8Z £l6'Z 695'92 £50'92 9/1'5Z 528'vZ 2056 20428 06’1z 861'1Z 18007 8BL6) 6LL'G) ELP'BL 0Dg'El ono'el %0S'E 1o8upiooD sasjriag bs |
829'LL SET'LL §59°01 s8rol €EL'OL 6L 08t's orL's leg's zes's 2’8 S96°L S69'L gev'L ¥ELL 082's 0004 %05'E sluslLissessy § saxe L Aliadold| €6 |
oLL'sE L9242 ez 8r9'ze z88'le ZrL'Le LEr'0Z 1EL'BL 630'61 vZysl L08'LL 66L°LE 8Lo'oL 9g0'gl ELG'SH LEE'LE oLl %05 asuBInsul| Zg |
rO0'BZ £20'82 90'LE 091’97 9.42'sZ LZP'bT 965'E2 18122 92022 [i:T.4% 29502 99881 56161 SrSBL BLE'LL SBOEL o8r'LL %05'E sennf s |
000°kEL LPE'L0L 0Z9'E0L  9LL'OOL  OEL'96 65166 66206 SbZ'48 S6Z'PE per'lE 089'8, 620'9L 85F'EL ri8'0L 14589 51109 028’99 %05'E ohed| 05 |
96€°09 £9E°85 08€'95 ELE'PS 1E9°2S z58°08 ZEL'BY 0Lv'Lh 598'5k PLE b ale'zy 89E"LY 69566 PAE:]: L'l 892'L2 15898 %05E aueusiuiel § Bunesado[ 6h
068'5L ore'ZL LiEoL 186'L9 869'59 9Lv'Es 528'L8 95265 75745 ale'ss SPP'ES 8E9'LS 2686 0z Bt vigar LEQ'PE £0g'sh %05e BANEASIUILIPY | B
B86'EE 6ER'ZE BzLlE §59'08 aLe'se Z19'82 BY3LZ rLi'aZ LIg'5e BEG'PT S60'PE 08Z'tZ €6+'Z2 zeL'le LB66'02 SHE'SL 09%'0Z %05 284 Juawabeuep | /b |
leaA Bseq 1390NE ONILYHIJO ToNNNY | BF |
|BnuUYy St
[ |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 [}] 0 0 0 %66 66 Jeupeg peiw[EY |
0 0 0 0 0 o 0 ] 0 0 ] 0 0 0 ] 0 %100 1BUpEd |2i8uSD| Er |
08g'or 095'6 18€'1L SEETL Zir'rl 629'5L 489'0L £95'LL 9781 £E9'8L LEEL 805BL 2r9'6l 10981 DESEL 8/E66 %v8'vE uea| Ajjowny Bujsnoy o) sidieos) enprsey| 1t |
LEST 0zs 619 oL reL 0s8 L06 556 66 20’} ar0'L 1o0°t a90°'L a90’t za0'L E0r'S %9L'G ueo| INOH A1 o1 sidigos [enpisay| ot |
65L°LE Z5z'08 LLE'BE SI9'8Z $89'42 8882 560°52 5€8°5E 165'T 188'62 SBLET 0lgzz 558°LE 8z 009'02 000's4 000028 934 Juswabeuspy diysiaulied jo JusliAed | BE |
0 4] o o o 0 0 0 o o 0 o a 25} ladojarsp palisjaq jo uslifed | Ge |
EBO'B 0z8'L 5554 008'L eg0's vigg v8s'9 L9g's arL'e 8E6'S 864’5 LeET age's S.L'g 000'g 0sL'e %0TE 53 awaBeUBN 1958y J01SaAU| 0 WalAed[7E ]
HSYD FTBYIIVAY 40 S3SN[9E
0zt 0E'L 0z'L 0zl ozt ozl o 0zl 0zt 0zl 0z'L BLL 6Lt 6LL [5E |
vEE's8 2518t 9z6'8r L1g'6 EE6'6Y z8l'ng viz'0s SLZ°08 £L005 9/9'6Y LLZ'By £EOBr 0Z5' it 8014y Z6L'op 2e5°8EL s|geliEAY USED 18N TE |
00561 005'sL 0055t 0055 005'51 00551 005'51 00551 00554 nossL 005's1 00551 0055t 00551 00g'sL £85°Z WN/005$ @ BAsasaY Jualadeidey( EF |
6174'S0Z 888'9vZ  8BE'OYZ  B6B'OYC  B6E'OPZ  BGB'OPZ  @GE'OPZ  8BG'OVZ  BEE'9PZ  BEB'OYC  BBE'OPZ  8E8'9rZ  BGE'OPZ  BAA'OMZ  BGE'OZ  OGL'Lb sBe6op 15414 S010BS 1980 ZE |
Z85'60E 0S5'0LE  SCE'LIE  GLE'LIE  LEEZLE  IBSELE  Z/9TLE EL9ZIE  ZIPTIE  GL0TIE BOO'LIE  ZZOLIE  BIE'DLE  90SBOE  IBS'BOE  S8E/8L INOONI L3N 1E |
0oL oot oot aoL aoL ook oot oot oot oot oot oot ooi oot oot aor fpouiny Buisnol epaLely of Jusw#ed ssea) puncis)| oe |
gLz L 6BY'PSE  0BL'ZSE  ZOE'OPE  SEE'BZE  VELULE  OLOLOE  199'06Z  999'98Z  686'9/Z  0S9/8Z  929'8ST  LOB'EYE  EBP'LVE  PPE'SEZ  [bL'OLL SASNIIXI ONILYHIJO| BT |
8
006'989 6EL°6L0  GL9'€99  €2E'CSY  §GZ'Lr9  SIF'0E9  6ALBL GLE'G09  BOL'GGG  POLBES  BOE'GLS  BPL'BOS  OZE'09S  OBO'LSS  SEO'ERS  CLL'BEE 193 TYILLNIAISEY WLOL[IZ |
92
0bS'bE BZLIYE  IGLUEE LOP'PEE  960'LEE  BISAZE  ZLSWEE  BGE'LEE  LLLBIE JZ0'GIE BOB'LLE  BLB'BOE  ZOL'SOE  PEL'ZOE  LEL66Z 8688l swooul g uonoes woiy 193 <7 |
vEL 'L bS8'LLl-  8LL°41-  008'LL-  ST¥'Zl- PSTUL- €80'LL- bLE'OL-  9vi'9l-  0BS'@L-  9lp'9l-  pSZ'OL-  EGO'SL-  €E6'SL-  9LLGL-  G/6'Op- L A %0z %00'S AouedBAFE |
rL9'EOE €80'65€  BIG'GSE  BOO'ZSE  ZES'8YE  ELO'SYE  SSOLPE  Z/ZBEE  €E6PEE  LO9'LEE  PZE'SZE  ELO'SZE GOR'IZE BO0MIE  EIGGLE  ELE'FET 4 awoall g uofjaes [€10L [ €2 |
4
50558 299't8 vZa'E8 6628 £L1'28 6SE'LE £55'08 96264 9958, +AL'BL oLE'LL #4994 58854 PEL'GL 0BE'PL LIE'98 628 €6L'L L %00k 1w %05 HaL[1z |
LrrLEL SvZ0ZL  vSOBLL  5/BZLL BOL'9LL  ESS'SLL BOP'PLL 9ZZ°BLL PSLELL pPO'LLL  GPB'EOL  9SA'SOL  BAL'Z0L  LL2'90L  SG9'S0L  LG9'Rs 126 £6L'E [ %00°k e %gr ¥al [0z |
LLL'GSL 9LL'pSL BPA'ESL  BEVLSL  LP9'GPL  0OL'BPL E69'0PL  LbZ'SPL  Z0@'Erl  B/E'TPL BSBOPL  EJSBEL  IBL'BEL  £28'98L  BOP'SEL  SE'OOL SPZ'L £6L'L 6 %00°L e v%0e a6l |
Hipjusl L10Z HN4 %001 38 owoau g uopdes|g) |
(ss04B) sjuel gsad Ll
09g'zre OLOPEE  E9B'SZE  8L6'ALE  LOL'OLE  A6G'Z0E  OLZ'GEE  910'8BZ  IBB'0BZ  BEL'P/Z  LGK'I9Z  BEG'0SZ  pOS'PSZ  GSE'BPEZ  BGZTPZ  PLZOGL siua) uea) woy 193[ 81|
61084 GLE'LL-  MGLAL- ZEL'OL- pEE'SL- 92E'SL- BEG'GL-  GSL'GL- 6BL'PL- BZY'RL- 9:0'vl-  EEL'EL- BBE'EL-  LAO'El- £6LTL-  £5546- L A %02 %00°S Aoumaep usprsey| Gl
SSE'S +ET'S 160G 7134 lsa'y EEL'Y L9t 505t S6E'F 887t 8Ly 1807 286'c veg'e 08L'E %0S'E Bwooul JswAIpUNET vl |
+20's5E SOEOFE  LIG'LEE  G0'6Z€  GEQ'IZE O0BLELE  BEV'SOE  DL9'GZ  SBE'LGZ  BAZPST  PPE'LLE  0BS0LZ  OBE'EOZ  ZPOUSE  09Z'LSE e BLoal |Bjuspisey ssuo[E] |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L woopaq g - ssbeuepy[ 71 |
6028 5128 15108 96L'AL 692°9L 8zrhL £19'2L Tra'oL rL1'89 8E0'L9 8269 AR £L8'29 48019 L6565 gL8ER 946 160'L g %052 29,00 HAL| 1] |
59156 6TH'E6 05416 126'08 85.'98 Zra're 8./5'28 +a5'08 665'8. z89'9L Lg'rs 188°EL 102'LL 0t'88 51249 968 Bl 261 LB L %05 'E 1we %05 HaLf ok
vZg8'so0l 691'80L  0BS'E0L  PSO'LOL  GES'EE val'98 8E8'E6 055'L6 LLE'GR 8EL'LR £L0'6e 6E6'28 £16°08 EbE'aL 8lo'LL 00£'35 00z zze [ %05 T [CLEATR
12’99 zL9've 980’8 860’10 96666 S£5'88 L0148 EAPRCL] 95€'t5 080'E5 LR sib'0g erzer zro'sk Ligop 905'vE 9zr ars 6 %05 T B %08 HAL[ 8 |
z
££0z 280z LEDZ 0EDZ 5202 820z Lzoz 9202 5202 ¥E0Z €202 2202 120z 0z0z 6L0Z BlOZ sluay Weual ey 5019 SN ey az(g [0 |
a9 Sl tl €l Z b ab B 8 & 9 ] ¥ € z 3 leniug ¥eW OvdL 910z jo# ]
[
zzh %00°5L SUUoW 06 8102 'L 1y 8anes ul pade|d e |
Hgl ‘smouBmo|ly AN SISATYNY MOTd HSVD ANV ‘S3SN3dX3 'IWOONI[ T
n 1 S u 5] d 5] N W 1 B T | [ H 9 | ] i 3 a [ o v

Wd 6LE SL0Z/B/LL

ssedwog YAEE PUE 43N LIIM J0IUSS Bjucly [2q - AjioLny BUISNOH epsLugly



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 11 of 31

WdBL'E QLOT/E/L

FRO'LOZE ook 092°G5E0L PLL'00Z L¥Y'0RSE 008°L09°E 908'v01'9Z S1S03 LI3rodd Tvlol] 29 |
09E'ESLY oot 008°L09°Z 09Z'S5E'0L U0 UoIMsUAg o usLuAedey| |g |
000°008 000'008 dde awn ) ul paddes - 884 welwdoeasa| 09
L68'FFE [¢] LBB'PFE suanelado ow g - sanesey Bunelsdo| RS |
000°02 0 000'0Z 85 |
0 000'0F 000'0F Bunaiep| 4 |
o 0 0oo'or 0o00'or uanealpuis - JueNsUoD), 195 |
000°51 000'SL Apnis 1eiEp | 55
000'0}F 1] 000’0k BUISO|2 UBD| JUBUEBLLISY - m_:km
000'0L 1] 0000k Buiso)s ueo| JuaURLISS - B6BT[EG
000°0F 1} 0000k uoneaipuis - ©6a7[Zg |
000'0E 000'08 Bu|SO|D UBGT UoNoNNSUDS - a8 4 868 [ 16 |
000°5 ooo's uonezueBiQ - see 4 |gbe[ 0g |
] §GL'LE a SGlit S88 - 88)JIILIOD UOEDD|Y JIPRID XL M
0 0 00001 0000k lesieiddy at |
000'0Z 000’0z Buiso[) ueo uonannsuod - epiL [/t |
¢} 000'05L 000'051 BaUBINSU| UANANNSUOY jo BSINOD|
0 o 00009 000’09 51500 pue (26| Japua| uoonnsuoD Gy |
0 csb'zal Zst'zel SyWoW £ - uoansues 1sod 1ssieiul ueo) uaPnisues | B |
0 LPB'ERE 1b6BRE SUIUDLU ] - UONaNAsUDa BuLnp jseEL| uBSY uonsnsueD)| B |
1] 000'08 ono'og uonanysuos Bupnp sexe | [Zx |
0 pLED Lbt'og L1288 uD|IonIsuos BuLnp suea) 1os uo 1saisulf Tt |
0 o g10'9Z 810'92 % DHOD 88} ueo| wied[ 0y |
o 0 bag' L2 v99°LL %54 @ S804 UBDT UONENNSUED[BE |
0 000°054 0000514 ausbuiuoa 1562 oS8 |
o 1] 000'04 ono'od spode) |gluswuoiaug| ze
o 0 000'002 000'002 juswebeuew uolanysues | ag |
o 0 000’008 000'00€ Bunsa) Guuesuibus ‘Kanng|ge |
0 092'vZE or's6L 000'02 aimoalay | bE |
o noo'sEl 000'52 4 sdnyoay AN pue siLaY | €€ |
o B8Z08E 882'09E {s88) paalem jo j8U) see4 joedw| =
o B6L°LGS BBZ'LS5 auay Jsnipe - AsusBunuos uonannsuod| L
0 000'0% 000'0S 18umQ Ag peselalng ainpuing M
a 00e'zZe 008'23 1PENUED Uohennsued Ul Aladold (euosied| 62
0 Se8'001 5e9'091 weiss Ad[Bz |
o TSE'LEL Z5E'LEL AdUBINSU PUB puaq Jopenuag | 2z
[1} 00Z'60% | 00Z'60k'L Ijeid/peslienc siusuaanbes jeeuab sooenuag[az |
L28'BLE LSE'P98°G BLE'LOE'D Z09'vrs'a vonannsuoy amZM
o §l4'e6g S1'6B5 siseq Ul suewWancidw sus[
0 000052 000'052 s158q U} 10U 310m BlS 10 sisio [ E2 |
0 0 000'SZ 000'62 51500 Buisap pur (pAeq[ 77 |
bl o] Q 000'0LE'ES anjEa = Auolyny BusnoN BpaWE|y WOoY BSES| - LoliIsinbag pueT| |2
suolnguuer (Brden B84 Jadojsnag UBO| UONaNASUOY ueo| [0z ]
d1 49 pauaBg IWOH 41D Auoliny Buisnoy aBebloj 18114 Annb3 Jo ueoT jo samnog &1 |
Bl
v
SA3320Hd N¥0D1 ONY SNOLLNEIYLNGD T¥.LIdYD 40 S3SN ANY S30HN0S ﬂ_
HO)! | 22 342 [ 30 a0 | 00 ER) O Z8

sseWoD YABH PUB 43N YilM Joluss aop (80 - Ajuoyiny Buisnay epawely



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 12 of 31

WdBLE 9L0E/6/11

000'0r £62'068'S 962892 £ZB'ES9 P80°/92'6 S1S00 193rodd 1v1lol| 29 |
9BE'DLE'S +95 28’2 09E'ESL 'L ueoT uonanNsuod Jo juawieday( Lg
000'0F 000°'0ZE 000002 000°0Z 000'008 dde Oy Ul paddes - 864 Juswdojansq)| 09 |
LBE'PPE LBR'TET suonesedo ow g - sensesey Bujriedo| S
00002 000'02 npny joslolg g5 |
0 0 Bunayepy| 145 |
o o uaneapuis - Jue)nsuon| 95
000G 00o'sE Apmis eie] 65
000°0L ono'ot BuIS0|0 Uea| uBUELad - 8l M
0000k ono'ol Buisala ueo] jualelllad - [eha1| G
0 0000k 000’0k uoNeaIPUAS - [267[ 75 |
0 000°0E 00008 Bujsoly uso uononnsuos - sas4 e[ 15 |
0 000'5 000's uoneziueBiQ - sas4 |ehe | DS |
0 0 S88 BBJIWLIOY UCHEO|Y |IPSI] xe) [ GF |
0 0 lesiesddy B |
00002 0000z Guisolg uea uenonasueg - s [ v |
0 0 B3LRIMSU| UDfIaNSUOY Jo B8INoD Bt |
o 0 sisoa pue |BES| ISPUS| UDIONISUOD) r_mle
0 0 SUIUOL / - UalIonNsUBD j5od 152181U] UBO| UoNaNASuOD [T
0 0 SyjUoL gL - usnannsuos Bupnp 1seisu| UBST ualannsueD | EF |
0 uolysnsuca Bulnp sexe ) [ZF |
0 ussnsusa Buunp sueo) Jos uo jsasu || 1T |
0 %! OHOO 88} UED| Wind[ Y |
Q x5/ @ 5984 UBDT UONONNSUOD [&E |
0 Kousbuiuoa 1502 yos| gt |
[i} spode) |euswuciaus| /e |
o JustueBedels uononisuos|ae |
o Bunse) ‘Guieslibus ‘Kenng| ge |
o ainoapyasy| e |
o sdnyooy Aynn pue sywied| e |
[} {sa8y pealem jo 18U) S804 joedw)| ZE |
0 o ss84 35nIpE - AausBunuos uonanisuas| 1E |
a 1eumg Ag peseyaing sanpuind| o |
0 j19EHUDD UofonysULD Ul Aledold (euosiad|BE |
0 wenshs ndlB2]
0 asueinsul pue puoq sojenuag |7z |
o lo1d/pesuIaA0 /slusWaINhes [2iauab iooenuan [z |
LTH'BIE LZE'ELE uonsnnsues) man|Ge |
o siseq Ul sswsAsidw) ais [T |
0 S|SB Ul 10U YI0M BUS 16 Bisya|Ee |
o 1500 Buisop pue [@Be| 7z |
o 000'0Lt'ES BNIEA - Ajucyiny Buisnol epswe|y woJy sses| - uoiisinboe pue[g |
000°0t £62'068'S  POG'EB9'T  LZB'ES9 [0z |
BLOZ/LE BLOZULL  BLOEAIL 9L0ZILEL sielaL [et]
UIMjE) KE) /G008 UDISIBALGD 10991500 Welp  BulSOiD [t |
/ uoi@dwos 2L |
SNOLLNEMINDD WLId¥O HINLIYYd OILINI 40 SININISYNEsIA[ 8L
R | HO | 00 | ER) | ND Wa 12

sseAWOD YABE PUB 43N UM JOUaS BIUoW 13q - ALIoRY BUISNoH epaluBly



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 13 of 31

WA BLE QLOZME/LE

—w\wﬂqﬂ — ahejualiad §paiD XB | |
30N %00 001 0 supas0 x| eleis] 6g |
290 BAB §LOZ %LE'T9 Aew 9.6¢ 8k 940z BuUNP LLE'LZES UoneEdo|E LJE'LER sypeld xe |eispad| pbs |
11de 2,000 €S
810z Jo] Aaurdnasg SUWOL NP8 & g0 Jeak jsiid Jo ueilodold| 26 |
3]
] BLI'B0E  LIE'1E8 LLE'LZ8 LE'LER LELZ8 L2E'128 LELze LE'LZR LLE'LER LIE'LES BFS'ELS 0L0'gLE'® 5110380 w101 [0F |
962’19 962'19 %08 18 WP8ID JB|os o juncwy| B
0 0 upsID SIS o Junowy [ 8 |
0 BLL'GDE  LAE'LEE Lig'Lze LE'ize Leize Le'1z8 LLE'LER LIE'LER L/E'LE8 LZe'1E8 £52ZLS PLLELZ'S 1Ipe.3 [e1Bpa Jo junowy| /7 |
19D 'S3A BYE'9ZL'E ealy dojaaag] oF nolYIa Jo) Juawsnipy %0EL| o |
292'020'L§ dde DyD L uj Junowe gaz'0z0'L siseg pojsanbey| G |
BOL'ERLL Aq Jvjpaiqel L Joj paonpay| b
8r9°0E 9LE'EIL'FL upas JB|os ja z/L 1Peans €Y |
bZOPEL bl UPBID [B13Pa %6 In) Siseg [aaltid [T |
5110380 XvL[ 1 |
|ov |
eLl'8gl et |
060°0F 808'8€ £94°LE 2§9'9e bLESE 804'5E zezee BbELE 962'08 zie'se SZL'PE 909'¢ £9LEE SHE'ZE Zsl'ze F99'e £.1'851 Eeans | ge |
E60'8 0z8's §85°L 00e's €50°L Fig'e 859 Laga ari'a BE6'S 8EL'S ¥¥5'S ace’s AR 000's 05L'€ %SE 88} JuBLuBbeLEW 19558 J0)5aAU|[ ZE
G51'LE 25208 LLE'BE SIL5'8E §89°LT 88'92 860'92 SEE'5T LBG'YT LBE'ET SBL'ET oLsze g58'Le gL'z 009'02 000’5k %G'E 85 Jusluabieuey diysiaupey M
ooo'oz 000’02 pny _um_.n_nm
0 000'0F 000'0F 1500 Bunex e[ b |
osz 000'L 000'} 000'% 000't 054 000's uoneziuebio| €€ |
LE8 lEB LER LEB LEB pas:] 88 g8 58 pao:} i) 188 €8 LE8 LE8 B8za 8L0'8F S99} wmmm:ns.b
BLL'L SLLY SLL't L't SLL'v SLL't Sy GhL'E Sy Sty ES'E SGL'AY §8a4 2aNILULLOD LONEIo|Y IpaID XeL| LE |
SWI L1 Q3ZILHOWY ONY GISNIdX3| OE |
62
9UE'EIL'FI [52 |
LbLLES 956 €S 980'EPS  0SE'SHS  bOL'BKS ee'ars  L68'LbS 950'2rS LEB'THS LET'HHS 5+9°095 LL6°LLS 6b5'Z85 119'808 9.2'6¥3 LYEZhY 9/E'EAL'FL |erans| £ |
EH
] 0 (sieaf ) Ausdaid (suosiad|sg |
955'G 0824 (sieof g) Auadaid jeuosiad| bz |
0 Q (s108k o) ernuspisey[ £z |
010’ 08L'Lz (s188A 5/ 2) BNUBpISEy N
[
0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 (s1e8f 5) Ausdoly |Buosiag [OF |
002'L LoF'Z Lor'z z00'f 599'9 LR 1PE0Z (s185A §) Ausdold |BUOSIBH [ 61 |
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 (s1Baf 0%) [BIUBPISSY H
B854 854 BSL 85L BSL 8GL L+8°02 (s1mmf §°22) [BIUBPIsSY (£t
El
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 (s1eeh 5] Auadold |euosied| gy |
0eg 09g'L 09z°L 0oL’z 005°E P15 LE6°0L (sieah g) Auadalg |Buosiag H
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 (sieaf 0t [BnuBpISEX [EL
BBE 868 86E 86 B6E B86E BGE 86E BGE B6E BBE LE6'0L (simafk g'2z) BHuspisay H
L
i} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 (sieak §) Auadold |euosiad| oL |
19454 £Z5'LE 4=} BES'ES £95'28 LELPS SE9'ELT (80 %00z 'sieaf g) fuadod |pucsiod[ G |
0 0 0 0 0 1] [i] [i] o 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (s1pa ) 0Z) SWsWBA0dW| m_,mH
SLSAL 6BO'SE 6Z0°gE 680'GE B6Z0°GE 680'5E B6Z0'GE 680°GE 6T0'SE 620°5E BE6'9E FrLLE 8LL'SH £8/°05 £0¢'95 989'82 GLLEBS (80 %051 'S129 §1) swawsaodw)| 215 [ £
0 o ] 0 0 0 [ 0 0 ] 0 0 0 [ 0 o 0 (s1834 0t} |BiUspIssy g |
0LE'S05 0LE'60% 0LE's0s 0LE'505 0LE'S0S 0LE'S0S oLE'seS 0LE'S05 0LE'S0S 01e'508 0lE'S08 0LE'505 0LE'SNS 0OLE'508 0LE'50% 826'L5E 920'96R'EL (s1mak 542} [BlUSpISSY| S |
NOILYIZIH43a] b
€E0Z 2602 1£02 0£0Z 5202 8E0E 1202 9202 S202 202 €E0Z Zz0e L1202 0z02 6LOZ BLOZ ANnOnY e
ED LD vl £l zl L oL 6 g ¢ ] g t € 4 [* SIONINDISNOD X¥1 40 IINAIHIS| €
NG wd | @ [ wa ra a HO | 50 40 1 3g ag oa | B0 vad | Z0 A0 i) MD

ssedwo] yAEE PUE SN UM Joues sjuoy 180 - Auoyiny Buisnoy epallely



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 14 of 31

WdBLE 9LDT/E/LL

BEGOCI SBG'LTH Z98'0EL EFSPEL 298'lEL EBYF GEEES LZL'996 89/ 895 958146 LL9'6L6 020'886 OLLLB6 L58°200'} PSO'EL0'L 1487984 spyaueg xeL 2ol| LZ
o 0 o o 08219 sipeig xel mees |92
0 (1] 0 0 0 (1] a 0 §]Ipal]) awoou| mo 81e1s | 62
o Q LB0'GOE [l o ¥ 6BZ'Lz8 682’128 6BZ'LZB 682128 6BZ'Lc] 68z'lza 68C'LZB 682128 Z02'2IS SUP8ID SW0AU-MOT |BIBPB | pE
S)IPBID XB L JO BIBYS JSULRY PRI Joisaau| [ EZ
9e6'0Z)  SBE.ZL  Z9MOEL  EvZ'WEL  Z98/8L  BSIOML  GSETRL  ZE'PPL  BLp'lPL 002’06 ZZE'8Sh  LEL'99L  LZPOLL  BOGMBL  GOLUGL  PREELT smSS0 wel sisusE[EE |
%00SE  %00SE  %00°SE %00 58 %00°5E %00°SE %OO'GE  %0DSE %005 %400'SE %00'SE %006 %00°GE %00'5€ %00'5E %00'GE 1esjoeig xo | puiiepy 17
9E§'SPE-  1/8'G9E-  OBR'E/E.  OSG'ERE-  ZGR'ERE-  BELO0F-  LpL'O0F  SOS'EMP-  L0E'MEb-  CEEGEP-  BYE'ZGR-  ELE'OLY-  LLG'O0BP-  00L'BLG-  ZPO'GAS-  DZ9'609- %66 66 © 1uNeg pauur Jojsaau) Gz
ge- Le- 8- 86- &€~ ob- L Lb- zr b= 5t 8t~ 6t 5" L8 Lo %L0° @ sIBys 1supeg [misuan [RL
aL
LLS'SPE-  B0/'S9E-  BEZBELE-  8BS'EBE-  LEG'SAE-  BAJ'00F-  ZAL'90t-  [PE'EMP-  GOFLZF  GLE6ZP-  EBEESt-  LZr'9/p-  G96'0Rb-  BLA'SLG-  BAD'SIS-  LEL'GDS- AWOONI 318X L LANITL
al
L0L'659 045'089 B9E'683 STH'669 CH6'60L BEE'9LL Lizeee EE0'0EL POTLEL Lv9'vrs FLOLOL L87'0BL 91’008 00’18 BE1'9:8 Sri'aLL suenanpaq) [ejal) 51
bl
060 0F 80696 £92'48 259'98 pLGGE 80L'GE zezee 6h22E g62'9e zie'se szL've 909'vE E94'EE SHE'ZE LT poo'es swiay| pasuadx3[EL
p2LES BSR'ERS  9BB'EKS  9SE'GPS  POL'SPS  ZSEOFG  UB6LPS  OS0'TPS  LCBEKS  LSTWKS  GPO0OS  LU6LMS  GKG'ZES L9809 DAZBK LrETHY uonetoaidagZL
0 Z51'z8L sannhueg | nsuso[ T
a 1] a [4] 0 Q a8y sedojeasp peusiep ua jseusul| o)
£0Z't BELY 90t FATN S 098°E 90B'E £58°C cog'e €5LE S0L'E 858°C E19E 895’ PZ5'E LBF'E aQ ueo| IaH A uo seuaiul| &
LEF'BL LZz'iL §90'94 L86'FL PEBEL 048°EL reg'LL OEB'0L 50004 901 '69 0EZ’89 54€'49 9£5'99 ELL'S9 206'v9 LvE'eY ueol yHy Uaiseseiu)| g
89’ 1EE9L 68542 vrz'8e 65E '8 190°85 25229 SB6'GL pleve PECA 5L'86 LIB'90L  OELELE LLZ0ZE  BLE'9TH Rt ELERIERETERERECICI] i)
suononpaq| o
¥S6'E ZIE'® sl 226’ BZLE 6ES'E £94'€ Ti5E £8e'e 61 Lo sho'e 198'z 549'2 a6tz 6’z susedsp uoseiel|[ 5
289'60E 055°0LE GZE'LLE SLE'LLE LEETIE LBSEIE 2i8'zie EL9'ZLE ZIFZLE SLDELE B08'LLE ZZO'LIE BLEOLE 905 'BOE LBS'BOE S9Z°/9L ewoou| Gunessdoien|
£E02 zene L£0Z g0z 5202 8202 1202 9202 5202 202 £202 zz0e 1202 0202 6102 810z €
al Gl rL £l cl 33 oL 6 8 2 9 S t £ Z I IWOONI 318YXYL O SISATYNY| 2
EE] r3 13 HI 93 EE 33 a3 | 93 | &3 v3 z0 A0 | xa [ ma AQ na

ssedwon yARE PUE 43N UM J0IUSS sjuop (8 - Ajuoyiny BuISNop Bpsle|y



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 15 of 31

WdELE 9L0Z/6/LL

St
0 0 0 ] 0 [ 0 0 0 o 0 [} 0 0 asuseg men| bE |
o 0 0 [ 0 0 ] 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 suopesad Woy prag unouwy[ EF |
0 0 0 ] ] 0 o 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 soueleg| ¢ |
Q Q ] o a o o ] o ] 1] 0 saue|eg jse7 uo jsaueu| Le |
1802 0802 6202 8202 1202 9z02 5202 vZ0z £202 720z Lznz 0z0g 6L0Z gLoz JETS [ oe |
9000 o8| Iadajanep paligjed| 6z
62
r11'98C E0L'SET ¥8Y'LET 920'82E 912 b2 BES' 12T EBY'BLT LEG'SIE 0B9'ZIZ LEB'B0E 092'L0Z 8E9'70Z 980207 985661 0EL'L6) LLL'PBL aoueieg man| LT |
LEsE 0z5 6lg 204 8L 058 £08 556 [ vZo'L a0’k 190’ 890°L 890't Z90't £0t's suonesdQ woy pied juncuwy| 8z |
1] sucinguue) |ender) woy pled junowy| 62
508 BET 229'GET £01'ZEZ EEL'BET 661528 BEE'ZEC LGEBLE Z6r'9lE PEOELE SS6°0LE 96Z'H0Z 869'50Z rGL'E0Z $59'002 AN Gl vLL'00Z acueea[Fz |
€0z b 8Ly 90t 10t 085'c 905'E £5A'E z08'c £5L'E S0L'E 859°E €198 895'E PZS'E -0 0 aoue|eg 1587 U0 15843l [ €7 |
ee0z ze0z LE0Z 0802 6202 8202 L208 9202 5202 vzoz 8202 2202 120z 0z0z 6L0Z 8L0z FLETS [22 ]
%64 ueol INOH ANo[T1Z]
joe |
L90GLP'P  98L/BE't  GZGGLE'r  ErE'PGZ'P  0BET6LP  BGESEL't /9180t L/6'0Z0t  bOOUSE'E  9/B'SLEE ZO9'GOB'E  PIOOLE'E  BpL'89L€  ESE'LZLE  /BL'G.9E BLY'OESE aoueieg maN| Gl |
035'ap 0956 LBE'LE S66'Z71 TiP'bL 6E9'SL £89'8L £95'/1 9.Z'8L €288l bzl 60961 Zr96l 14961 OES 6L 8/E'66 suanelado woy pied Wnowy| gl |
0 suUQINQUUCY |epde) woy pled Junouwy| 2|
[L9'59v't  ObL'96E'v  LOG'OEE'r  AE8'/SZ'v  ZEZ.0Z'¢  BEOGKL't  vSE'ZEOY  ES'BE0’t  0BE'SBE’E  BOL'PEEE  bPBYBR'E  ZZL'OEE'E  GBE'SBLE 00G'LbLE  LIE'SBR'E  LPPIOBOE asueeq| gt |
LEP'BL \ZeLL 59084 188'tL vBE'EL 048'2L vaa'LL 08604 50004 a0L'69 0EZ'A9 §46'19 9e5'99 ELL'SY 208'v9 LYEBY Baus|ed 188 :Emsm_c_,mll__
ee0z Ze0z LEOZ 0802 6202 8202 1202 9z02 5202 bZ0E £202 zzoz 120z 0z0z 6L0Z eLnz G bl
%ELL ueol wHy[E1 |
2l
PSSOt 0OP'EZ®T  C9°ZB6'P  LOR'EEL'S  EpZALZG  EBOELY'S  EOLPG'S  GEL'E9Y'S  BERALL'S  SEZE'SR8'S  Zv9UeB'S  PHL'ESO'  BPLTLNO  ZZS'9SZ'9 [BOPEE'D  BLYIOFS 1930 Wlol[ 1l
o 0 ] n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 pamg S84 uswabeueyy dusisuped oL |
] 0 0 0 0 0 o [ 0 [ 0 0 ] 0 0 0 pamo 8] 1adojsrsp peusEal 6 |
pLLGET £0L°587 vBYLET 920'82C 9LL'bzT BES'LZE £ar'alz LES'SLE 069'ZIE LE6'B0E 05Z'402 8E9'POZ 960202 98566} ogL 6L LLL'BBL usol IWoH Aro| 8 |
L90GLP'Y  9BVUBE'T  GZG'GME'P  ZPE'PSZ'Y  0BE'Z6LT  BBEEEM't  LDL'90'"  LLG'0Z0'Y  ¥D9U9B'E  9/E'SLEE  C09'S9R'E PLO'OLE'E  BRL'GOL'E  EGB'LZLE  [BL'GLOE  OLYOESE uBal Apioyiny Buisnol epawery| 7 |
o LLLLOZ 299'tEY 286'069 Lp9'5GH ovL'8S0'L  PEG'OPZ’L  OEQ'OZP'L  EEGUGG'L  BLL'08ZL  OBL'PIB'L  £E6'LS0T  GIE'LOZ'E  EBO'SEE'T  0LLLOYE  IBZ'ZRST ELEGTETURCTE] )
ecoz zeoz Le0z 0E0Z 6202 820z 1202 9z0Z 5202 v20z £202 - ze0g 1202 0zoz 6L0Z g0z Il
£ st bl EL FAl Lt ol [ 8 L 9 ] + £ z ] 1830 ONIONYLSLNG[ ¥
H3 o4 EE] EZ] | a4 FE] CE] EE] i FE] A3 X3 | M3 i A3 n3 JE] s3 FE]

ssedwos YABE PUB 43N YIM Joiuag swapy [Bg - Auoyiny Buisnoy epswepy



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 16 of 31

Wd BL'E QLOTE/LL

S02'8.4L £vL'668 BZL'LE0'L  O66'/SL'L  ZECE6IL  PGO'0EY'L  ESE0LGh ZHLELLL  vPSLGE'L  ZZ0'SO0'T  GOESSLET  OLS'BIEE  LYE'ORPE 29.059C OEECE8C SE09LOE (sess07) siyeued xe L apv] ic |
vPP'EZZ'Z  OBG'BOS'E  LGOPE6'Z  ZPG'BOE'E  ZEO'ZBO'C  PEB'SE0'r  ZZL'98b'r  EOP'EER't  BOZL0E'S  SE9BEL'S  L95USL'9  SIE019'9 6B9'0ROL 900'CLS'.  TLE'TEOR  PLP'LLOR 8|BS U0 {sessa} siyeuag xe ) [ oF |
[
PPP'EEZE  OBB'BOS'E  LSOVEB'Z  ZFS'SOEE  Z6O'ZBY'E  vEG'GB0'T  ZTLO8PY  EGY'EGEY B9ZL0E'S  SE9'BZL'S  [86'LGL'9  GLE'DIY'S  689'SADL a08'eL5 L C/ETEOR  pLyLOR 158UBU] diysisupEd Ul SISEE| BE |
0 o 0 0 ] 0 0 o o 0 o o 0 o [ o mojd useo[iE |
9e6'SkE-  L/9'S9E-  OGR'ELE-  OSSEBE-  ZEBESE-  BEL'00T LpL'90r  SOB'ELP- L9812y ZEEBEZY-  BPEESH-  ELE'DL- LLE'SBt- 894815 Zr0'595-  0/9'609- diysiaumQ Bulinp sasso peieooiy| oF |
0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 a o 0 ] 0 0000k P80°'4E2'6 sualinguiue |eided (57 |
086'895'Z  LSOPE6T  ZPY'BOEE  ZA0'ZEOC  PAG'SEO't  ZZL'98v't  EOYEEA  BOZ'J0E'S  SEQBZL'S 9674519 GIE0LO'9  BEO'9R0L  909'ELSL Ti8TE0'  bLP'LLO'B lunaoay endes (enu|[FE |
(s158q BPISING) S1SIHILNI JIHSHINLYYL OILIWT 40 (YIISNVEL) IS NO STONINDISNOD XvL 40 NOILYINO T [EE |
%4
508°60'C  LYE'EPPZ  ELO'BOBZ  E0B'ZBL'E  ESP'9S'E  SPEOSS'E  EBOLSE'r  pER'/9.Y  OEQLBL'S 9B6'Z0S'S BIEZE0'S  //9'vBK'D  0SO0'L9E'D L96'LvbL  PEL'99E'L  OLL'IBE'R oeqabieyo snid unoooy eudes 17 |
0 i o 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 ¥oeqeBieyd Weo Wnliw| oz |
&L
SOB'L60'C  LPE'CrP'E  EL0'B08'E  EOBZBL'E  E£SP'99S'E  SrE0SS'E  EBO'LBE'Y  vZE/OL'v  OE9ISL'S 9BE'Z09'S  BEETEO'S  L/9'PBFE  DSO'I9E'D L9B'LbP'L  PEL'O9B'L  OLL'IGH'R 1naooy (eyded Jeaj jo pus[ e |
0 Q 0 o Q o 0 ] o o 0 0 ] 0 Q 0 wold useo[ /1 |
L66 PG~ sasuadx3 uoneslpuAs|al
2ro0e- JpaIs ejos jo z/| 1aenqns| Gy |
9ES'GPE-  1/Q'S98-  OBA'ELE-  OGSEBE-  Z68EGE-  BEL00k-  LbL'O0F  GOBELP- 198'12p-  ZEE'GTy  BYETSH  BLE'9Lt-  L1G'99%- 99/'815 Zp0'ses-  0L9'G0S- suonanpeg| bl |
0 000'0F 802226 suonnquued E1des el |
LPEEPY'E  E£L0'B0R'Z  EOGEBL'E  ESK'99S'E  SPE'DDG'E  £RO'LOE'T  pEBGLY  ODEYLBL'S  966'Z08'S  GZE'EE0'G  L49'vBY'S  0S0'LOG'@  L96'/bEL vEL'986'.  8.L'lBY'B O souejeq junoaoy (edes| 21 |
LNNOIOY TWLIgw o[ T ]
oL
o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 HomqaieyD ue ules w6 |
9/£'559'  9Z8'LZ9¥  bSS 0SSt  OZFEEP'T  PSLUMPP  ZOSRSET  LZZPEZP  GB0'9ETF  9.8'BLL'P  PGE'SZL'P  OPFELO'P  GPROZOP  9EF'DLE'E LFO'LEB'E  6TSTLBE  bL'bZAT 198(] B8IN0IBLON BulpLEISING| |
0L9'pE9'9  L0v'Z92'; B6K'SBL. SZLOLE'S  L08'9EE'M  OLO'PZE'S  GPG'ZER'E  LEO'GLL'OL  E9G'BES'0L POY'ZOK'LL  6A0'996'LL LEO'OES'ZL BOP'GBO'EL  GES'ESOEL  LLGEREPL  SEZL'S/EPL Jesk jo pua e sised| 7
v60°1ES-  LOB'EPS-  LPB'EPS-  LOS'SPS-  BOL'BPS-  BBZ'OYS-  EELPS-  ZOD'ZhS- £8/'ZbS-  Z8L'PPS-  BBS09S- 61645 LBPEES- 055'809- Lig'srg-  9BC'Zvb- sise@ woy suononpad| 9 |
POE'9ZE'.  BOE'O0A’,  BEC'OEE'®  922'958'8  9LG'WSE'S  BOE'0LB'G  E6B'PEPOL EEOUS6'0L  SPE'LEP'LL OP9'900'ZL 899'9Z5°ZL 0SG'A0L'EL  B68'LLOEL 680292yl  ZZL'EBRTL  LZFLLE'SL m_mmm_h
£E0T ze0z Le0z 0802 BZOZ 820z 2202 9202 5202 venz €20z czoz 1202 ozoz 6L0Z a0z Jeap ¥
<18 {8 tL £1 Zt LL oL B ] L g 5 t [ z 1 BIBYS JBULES uB_E_A_H
SIHSHIANLIE Y AILINIT A IHSYINMO ONINNA SISATYNY LNNODDY TLIdval T
I HI ol | El ai Bl 8l Vi ZH AH I XH MH AH [ nH | 1H | SH

ssRAWOD WARR PUB 43N UM 101USS Bjuop (a0 - Aluoying Buisnoy epawe)y



2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

1] Eg-Unr 211

ErL'668 £PL'EGR  EE-1EW £
~ 966'LE 966'LE ze-28Q St
o™ 956'LE 966'LE Ze-dag FLL

966'LE 956°1E zg-unr ELL
_..m 966'LE 986'LE ze-tep E

ShLZE §hL'ZE Lg-380 TTE
N~ shLze 5LL'28 Lg-deg I
~ SHL'ZE 514'ZE Lg-unr GoL

sLL'ze SLL'ZE LE-BI 801

() L9g'EE LOG'EE 0£-020 Zot
(@)] L9G'EE L9G'EE oe-deg 501
© 195°68 +95'SE og-unr |50t
o 195°€E l95'ee Qe-len [
LI 99t'tE 62-580 B
9t'pe 207'vE 6z-02s [Zot]
99b'pE EERS sz-une [For
9ar've 98t vE BZ-18 oot
9EE'THL 9T 8z-02@ (55 |
9eE'ehL 9EE'ZiL gg-deg Ea

9EE'THL 9EE'ZLL gz-unr 15

9EE'ZHL 9EE'ZH az-1enl 16 |

ZLE'ObE ZLB'0bE 22-380) Ea

ZE'0Z zZi6'0re Lz-deg [75 |

zie'ore zleore Lgunr €5 |

ZLE'0rZ ZLB0FE LE-1Bn E

0851 PE 0BG HhE 0z-08Q (75 |

085'LYE 0EG LPE 9z-dag (06 |

0E5'LbT 0ES'IbZ  gzunr [58 |
085'LbE 0ES'LbE 9z-4el (88 |

Z6L'2rZ Z6L'ZrE sz-08Q (8]

761'2p2 Zel'zez gg-des E

2612k ZeL'zb  sEeunr El

TBL'EHE gLz sEEW 8

688'ZFZ 5860 rz-02Q El

688'ZVE sea'zre  ke-des E3

588 24T BEBZPZ  bEeunT 8|

608'25Z seEErE  pE-lEen 08

£06'thE S0E'+PZ  £2-980 (5L |

£06'PHE cog'vve  eg-des [8Z]

E0B'PbE 0B bbZ gg-unr 7]

£06'F1E £06'PtZ £z-1e EA

500'24Z s00'2b2  2E-0eQ EA

§00'L4T soo'sbz zzdes [Pz ]

500'L4E s00'spE gEunr [EL]

500'24E SooubE  EE-1ew 3

8Z6'10E 22644 1z-38Q 7]

8E6'L0E 92644 1g-dag [0 ]

828°LrT 826 LT Lg-unr [69]

826'LbC 826'L1E 12-ten (89|

rl2'052 vleosz  oz-ed (9]

bLL0SE vLLosz  ogedes 55

tl2'0se vLL'0SE oz-unr (59|

riz'nsz pia'ose  og-ep =
£82'p52 £9/'v52  BL-9aQ [e9]
£91'bSZ £94'v5E sL-deg =3
€92'v5E €9.'v5E  Sl-unr [

£0L'7LZ 000°0F £0L'PST  GL-BW =

L00'8Z9'S-  EBZORB'S 26279 g1-020 55 |

zi90Zv'Z-  poe'zeoT  Z6z'or  gides E3|

262292 Z6ezaE  |Lunr [25]

0 gl-lep EA

0 L1220 A

a Li-dag [

0 Z1-unp [£5 |

0 JASLI] 25 ]

lzeesy 429859 al-080 |45 ]

o gi-dag 05

[ gt-unr |57 |

%80 0 gL-mByy E3

0 1< |

0 [

HHl 13N INIWLSIANI  LI43N3E 3iva &
(ATHILEYAD AILYINDTYO) NENLIYH 40 3Lvy IWNEILNI[PY |
XH__ | MH | | G

Wd 6L'E 9L0Z/EVLL ssedwod YASE PUE 43N Yim Jouag sjuop (20 - fAiuouyiny buisnol epewely



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 18 of 31



ICD ITEM 4-A, Exhibit B

ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT

Resolution No.

DEL MONTE SENIOR HOUSING

At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Island
City Development, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“ICD”), held on
November __, 2016 (the “Meeting”), the following resolutions were adopted:

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the “Housing
Authority”) and TL PARTNERS I, L.P., a California limited partnership (“TLP”) are
parties to that certain Agreement for Development of Affordable Housing (Del Monte)
made as of November 3, 2015 (the “Agreement for Development of Affordable
Housing”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement for Development of Affordable Housing,
the Housing Authority entered into the following “Option Agreements”: (1) the Real
Property Purchase Option Agreement entered into as of October 1, 2015 with the City of
Alameda (the “City”), with respect to certain land located in the City of Alameda (the
“City Land”); and (2) the Real Property Purchase Option Agreement entered into as of
February 9, 2016 with TLP and Encinal Del Monte Plant 48 Reuse, LLC, with respect to
certain land located in the City of Alameda (the “TLP Land”; together with the City
Land, the “Land”); and

WHEREAS, the Land is commonly referred to as 1301 Buena Vista Avenue,
Alameda, California; and

WHEREAS, the Land will be transferred to the Housing Authority pursuant to
the applicable deeds attached to the Option Agreements; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that the Housing Authority enter into and record
against the Land an “ Affordable Housing Agreement”; and

WHEREAS, ICD has formed and is the sole member and manager of Del Monte
Senior LLC, a California limited liability company (the “LLC”), and the LLC has formed
and is the sole general partner of Sherman and Buena Vista LP, a California limited
partnership (the “Partnership”), with the Housing Authority as the sole limited partner
(the “Limited Partner”) of the Partnership; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for the Partnership, as lessee, to enter into a ground lease with the
Housing Authority, as lessor, with respect to the Land for a term of 99 years and upon

1 2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 19 of 31



such terms and conditions as deemed necessary or appropriate by an Officer (as defined
below) (the “Ground Lease”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for the Partnership to construct, own and operate 31 units of affordable
housing (including 1 manager’s unit) on the Land (the Partnership’s leasehold interest
in the Land and fee interest in the improvements, including the affordable housing,
now or hereafter located thereon is collectively referred to herein as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership, for the Partnership to enter into a development agreement with the
Housing Authority, as developer of the Project (the “Development Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership, for ICD, the LLC and the Partnership to assist in the acquisition,
construction and development of the Project by: (i) consenting to the withdrawal of the
Housing Authority as limited partner from the Partnership and facilitating the
admission of an affiliate of NEF Assignment Corporation, or a substitute investor
("Investor”) as a 99.99% limited partner in the Partnership in exchange for capital
contributions of approximately $9,267,804, and (ii) amending and restating the
agreement of limited partnership of the Partnership (as amended, the “Amended
Partnership Agreement”) to provide for such other matters as may be required by the
Investor and entering into the Guaranty Agreement (the “Guaranty Agreement”) for
the benefit of the Partnership and the Investor (collectively, the “Syndication”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for the Partnership to obtain the following financings for the Project,
which will be secured by liens on the Project (“Secured Financings”):

(@) A recourse, construction loan from Compass Bank (“Compass”) in the
approximate amount of $10,279,862, which is expected to convert to a nonrecourse
permanent loan in the approximate amount of $2,499,800 (the “Permanent Loan”),
which Permanent Loan will be acquired by California Community Reinvestment
Corporation at conversion;

(b) A nonrecourse construction/ permanent loan from the Housing Authority
in the amount of $3,600,000, which will be repaid with the Project’s residual receipts
(the “Housing Authority Loan”);

(c) A nonrecourse construction/permanent loan of HOME funds from the
City in the approximate amount of $195,740, which will be repaid with the Project’s
residual receipts (the “HOME Loan”); and

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 20 of 31



(d) A nonrecourse permanent loan from the Housing Authority in the amount
of $3,410,000, which will be repaid with the Project’s residual receipts (the “Ground
Rent Loan”); and

WHEREAS, as a condition of the Secured Financings and the Syndication, the
lenders and the Investor may require that ICD and/or the LLC (a) guaranty the
payment and performance by the Partnership and/or the LLC of their obligations
under the documents evidencing and securing the Secured Financings and the
Syndication, and guaranty timely lien-free completion of the Project and make certain
indemnities (the “Guaranties”), and/or (b) assign any fees from the Partnership as
security for the Secured Financings and the Syndication (the “Security Assignments”),
and ICD deems it to be in the best interests for itself, the LLC and the Partnership, to
make and enter into the Guaranties and Security Assignments; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for ICD, the LLC and the Partnership to execute and deliver any and all
documents or agreements necessary or advisable for the acquisition, development,
financing, construction, rehabilitation, management, operation and maintenance of the
Project, including, but not limited to, all grant deeds, deeds of trust, UCC tinancing
statements, regulatory agreements, assignments of rents, leases, income and profits,
general assignments, construction contracts, architect agreements, grant agreements,
development agreements, sub-development agreements, management agreements,
service contracts, housing assistance payments contracts and similar or related

agreements for housing subsidies, and any other types of agreements (collectively, the
“Project Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for ICD, the LLC and the Partnership, as applicable, to grant, any
easement and/or a dedication of a portion of the Project, as may be necessary, to the
City of Alameda and/or the County of Alameda, or other public body, and to execute
such documents and to perform such actions as may be required in order to obtain all
necessary and appropriate entitlements, permits and any other authorization for the
acquisition, development, management or operation of the Project and for any waiver
of entitlement or similar fees (collectively, the “Entitlement Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for ICD, the LLC and the Partnership to execute such documents
(including, without limitation, any indemnities and guaranties) and to perform such
actions as may be required in order to obtain all necessary and appropriate title
insurance (owner and lender policies) for the Project (collectively, the “Title
Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of itself, the LLC, and
the Partnership for the Partnership to enter into a housing assistance payments contract,

3
2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 21 of 31



an agreement to enter into a housing assistance payments contract, or such other
agreement or document in connection with a project-based voucher assistance with the
Housing Authority or such other appropriate party (collectively, the “HAP
Documents”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that ICD for itself, the LLC and the
Partnership, does hereby approve and is authorized to enter into the following
transactions and documents, as applicable:

1. Ground Lease;

2. Development Agreement;

Amended Partnership Agreement, the Guaranty Agreement and the

Syndication;

Secured Financings;

Guaranties and Security Assignments;

Project Documents;

Entitlement Documents;

Title Documents;

HAP Documents; and

0. Such other documents, agreements and contracts deemed necessary or
advisable by an Officer in furtherance of these resolutions and/or to assist
in the development of the Project (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”), using his or her own independent judgment.

&

20 0N oG

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Board hereby authorizes each of (a) Vanessa
Cooper, President of ICD; (b) John McCahan, Vice President of ICD; or (c) Janet Basta,
Secretary of ICD (each, an “Officer”), acting alone to accept the Transaction Documents
subject to any minor conforming, technical or clarifying changes approved by an Officer
and ICD counsel. Each Officer is hereby further authorized and directed to take such
further actions and execute and record such documents as are necessary to accept the
Transaction Documents, for itself, the LL.C and the Partnership.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all actions previously taken by ICD, the LLC
and the Partnership, and any of their employees, officers and agents, in connection with
the Project or the transactions described herein are hereby ratified and approved.

wdkkkk

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 22 of 31



] The Bylaws of ICD, as adopted on October 27, 2014, set the number of
directors to be three (3).

. As of the date of the Meeting, ICD has/had three (3) directors.

] __directors attended the Meeting.
. The Board approved these resolutions at the Meeting as follows:
Aye: Nay: Abstain:
. A copy of said resolution(s) has been sent to any Board member not in

attendance at the Meeting.

F*kkkkk

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 23 of 31



ATTEST:

Vanessa M. Cooper Janet Basta
President Secretary
Adopted:
Date

51

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 24 of 31



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 4-B

To: Board of Directors
Island City Development

From: Victoria Johnson
Director of Housing and Community Development

Date: November 28, 2016

Re: Authorize the Board President to Negotiate Terms and Execute a Final
Contract Agreement for Architectural and Engineering Design Services for
the Rosefield Project in an Amount Not to Exceed $1,200,000

BACKGROUND

In recent months, staff continues to work on the redevelopment of the Rosefield project. In July
2016, the project received a preliminary approval for tax-exempt bond allocation for the
construction of 60 new units. The Board also approved a $1m loan from the Housing Authority
to pay for pre-development activities. The next steps are to select an architectural firm to
proceed with design development and construction drawings and to engage an environmental
consultant to complete the Phase | CEQA and NEPA studies. Staff has also engaged Landis
Development, LLC, to serve as a third party real estate development consultant to assist with
the project management tasks.

DISCUSSION

The Housing Authority maintains a list of pre-qualified architectural and engineering firms. Staff
issued a Request for Proposals to the pre-qualified firms as follows: Anne Phillips Architecture,
BAR Architects, Dahlin Group, MWA Architects, SGPA Architecture, and YHLA Architects.
Responses were received from five firms (all but BAR). The three top ranked firms were Dahlin
Group, SGPA Architecture, and MWA Architecture. Staff conducted interviews with the firms
and recommends Dahlin Group as the first choice and SGPA as the second choice. Both of
these firm’'s proposed fees fall under the budgeted amount. The SGPA fee proposal is above
the budgeted amount.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The architectural contract cost is budgeted at 5.5% of the estimated construction contract
amount of $22 million, plus 5% contingency for a total amount of $1,270,000. Some portion of
this amount will be paid during the construction phase and paid directly from lender or investor
proceeds.

Funds for pre-development expenses will be available through the loan made by the $1m loan
previously made by the Housing Authority to ICD. Pre-development expenses are reimbursed
by the construction loan proceeds at the start of construction.

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 25 of 31



ICD Board of Directors November 28, 2016
Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate terms and to execute a final contract agreement
for architectural and engineering design services for the Rosefield project. The exact amount of
the contract will be negotiated depending on the menu of services but the total amount will not
exceed $1,200,000. The A & E services agreement will be phased to allow for changes to the
scope or duration of the project.

Respectfully submitted,
v A W )
// (U] TUL /@ar.j‘mwﬂ/l,

Victoria Johnson
Director of Housing and Community Development

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 26 of 31



ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT ITEM 4-C

To: Board of Directors
Island City Development

From: Victoria Johnson
Director of Housing and Community Development

Date: November 28, 2016
Re: Approve and Adopt Budget for Fiscal Year 2017
BACKGROUND

The ICD fiscal year ends December 31. When ICD participates in development projects,
project funds are held in separate bank accounts that are controlled by the limited
partnership and the project budgets are reviewed and approved by the project lender
and investor as well as by the ICD Board.

The proposed budget for 2017 includes ICD activity related to the development projects
during the pre-development phase only as well the administrative expensed of the non-
profit.

DISCUSSION

To date, ICD has taken three loans from the Housing Authority for the purposes of the
development of the Everett and Eagle, Del Monte and Rosefield projects ($1mm per
project).

Overview of Activity - 2016

As of January 1, 2016, approximately $705,000 was available for pre-development
expenses of the Everett and Eagle project. As of October 31, 20186, approximately
$550,000 has been expended in 2016. The end-of-year balance will be carried forward
to 2017.

As of January 1, 2016, approximately $940,000 was available for pre-development
expenses of the Del Monte senior project. As of October 31, 2016, approximately
$850,000 has been expended in 2016. Most of the pre-development expenses will be
reimbursed through the closing draw in mid-December 2016. These funds will be

redeposited into the ICD account and the end-of-year balance will be carried forward to
2017.

During 2016, $1,000,000 was available for pre-development expenses of the Rosefield
redevelopment project. As of October 31, 2016, approximately $165,000 has been

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 27 of 31




ICD Board of Directors November 28, 2016
Page 2 of 2

expended. The end-of-year balance will be carried forward to 2017.

In 2015, ICD paid an administrative staffing services fee to AHA for $100,000. During
2016, ICD administrative expenses included $100,000 payable to the Housing Authority
for staffing services, and audit and insurance expenses of approximately $10,000.

Revenues: As of the closing for the Del Monte project, ICD will earn an installment of
development fee in the amount of $240,000. This revenue will cover the 2015 and 2016
staffing services fees, as well as other administrative and end-of-year expenses.

In 2017, ICD expects to earn an installment of development fee for the Everett and
Eagle project in the amount of $240,000. ICD also expects to earn $100,000 in
development from the Stargell Commons project.

Proposed Activity - 2017

The attached budget projections do not reflect construction activity, as construction
funds are held and managed by the limited partnerships. (A new partnership is formed
for each tax credit project.)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

In 2017, the ICD administrative expenses will include $100,000 payable to the Housing
Authority for staffing services, and estimated audit and insurance expenses of
approximately $60,000.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval and adoption the proposed 2017 budget.
Respectfully submitted,
SN P
4{/ [ ]7 Mo , H{'!V}_am 20
Victoria Johnson

Director of Housing and Community Development

Exhibit A: Approved 2016 Budget
Exhibit B: Proposed 2017 Budget

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 28 of 31



ICD Item 4-C Exhibit A
ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT

FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET

Eagle Ave. | Del Monte | Rosefield | Administrative

Revenue or Expense

Projected Starting Balance $650,000 | $600,000 | $650,000 (115,000)
Developer fee 100,000 100,000

2016 administrative costs 125,000
A & E services 125,000 250,000 | 250,000

Professional Services 175,000 115,000 125,000

Application Fees and deposits 150,000 100,000 150,000

Misc. permit and other fees 80,000 50,000

Ending Balance (cash balance) | $220,000 | $185,000 | $125,000 (240,000)

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 29 of 31



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet
Page 30 of 31



ICD ITEM 4-C Exhibit B
ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT

FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET

Eagle Ave. | Del Monte | Rosefield | Administrative
Revenue or Expense
Projected Starting Balance $140,000 | $800,000 | $810,000 $ 20,000
Revenue 340,000
2017 administrative costs 160,000
A & E services 50,000 450,000
Professional Services 25,000 125,000
Application Fees and deposits 10,000 25,000
Misc. permit and other fees 50,000 100,000
Reimbursement due $935,000 | $125,000
Ending Balance (cash balance) | $940,000 | $925,000 | $110,000 $200,000

2016-11-28 ICD agenda packet

Page 31 of 31





